
Polson City Commission Meeting Minutes November 15, 2010 1 
 

POLSON CITY COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
CITY HALL – CITY COMMISSION CHAMBERS 
NOVEMBER 15, 2010, 7:00 P.M. 
 
ATTENDANCE:  City Commissioners:  Don Smith, John Campbell, Judy Preston, Mike 
Lies, Elsa Duford, and Mayor Pat DeVries presiding.  Commissioner Fred Funke absent.  
City Manager Todd Crossett and City Attorney James Raymond present.  Others present:  
Fred Nelson, Susanne Luepke, Ric Smith, Denise Petersen, Stephen Stanley, Robin 
Wallace, Murat Kalinyaprak, Parks Superintendent Karen Sargeant, Police Chief Doug 
Chase, Cheryl Wolfe and Dave Sheesley 
 
CALL TO ORDER:   Mayor DeVries called the meeting to order and the Pledge of 
Allegiance was recited.   
 
APPROVAL OF PROPOSED AGENDA:  Mayor DeVries noted that the police department 
had requested the removal of agenda item #5, the C.O.P.S. Grant, until the Commission meets in 
December.  City Manager Crossett added that they were putting projections together for a 
presentation.  They had established the need for additional police, with violent crime in Polson 
nearly twice the average of other similar sized cities.  Commissioner Duford requested a copy of 
the grant documentation be provided to the Commissioners.  Commissioner Lies moved to 
approve the agenda, removing agenda item #5.  Commissioner Preston seconded the 
motion.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA: 

 CITY COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES NOVEMBER 1, 2010 
NOVEMBER 1-15 CLAIMS 

Commissioner Lies moved to approve the consent agenda with a correction to the 
attendance, seconded by Commissioner Preston.  Commissioner Duford expressed concern 
over the cash balance for the general fund being in the negative and having continued purchases.  
Commissioner Campbell noted that very little of the total expenditures were from the general 
fund, the majority were within water, sewer, and streetscape funds.  City Manager Crossett noted 
that with the general fund’s reserve from July not being able to sustain a positive balance all the 
way through to December, they had three options to borrow from governmental sources, to 
borrow from other funds, or run the fund in the red until December revenue was received.  The 
City Treasurer had recommended running the fund into the red for the short term that would take 
place.  He added that all departments were running with a directive that no non-essential 
purchases were to be made from the general fund.  The motion carried unanimously.   
 
CITY MANAGER COMMENTS: 
City Manager Crossett noted that Parks Superintendent Karen Sargeant had been presented an 
award in recognition of her hard work for the Polson community beyond the call of duty by the 
PBC.   Several of the projects she had worked on included Streetscape, the Riverside Park 
Armed Forces Memorial staircase, and the farmers market.  He expressed his appreciation for 
Mrs. Sargeant’s work as well.  He added that the parks department had received a $500 donation 
from the farmer’s market as a thank you for the successful relocation.   



Polson City Commission Meeting Minutes November 15, 2010 2 
 

The reopening of Main Street block party had been a great success with a tremendous turnout.  
He opined that the City should put on more similar celebrations.  There were still a few things 
for the contractor to finish up before Main Street was finalized.  The committee working on 
fundraising for Main Street was doing great work; they had good ideas and offering businesses 
or donors opportunities to purchase corners in return for a plaque or similar item with their name 
posted.  There had been positive and negative comments on the stop signs on Main Street, 
however the positive feedback was gaining.  The signs were not necessarily permanent; they 
would see how the community felt after having them in place for a time.  Mayor DeVries noted 
that the stop signs should have additional signage that read “4-way stop”.  City Manager Crossett 
noted that the additional signage was ordered and would be installed. He added that they were 
also considering adding an additional 4-way stop at 7th Avenue and Main, and possible resigning 
5th & 6th Avenue and Main Street with yield to pedestrian signs.  Commissioner Preston noted 
that she had heard complaints about the parking spaces being too short for some pickup trucks.  
City Manager Crossett encouraged any comments on the parking, when they chip sealed the 
street in the spring they would be restriping the parking spaces and possibly widening them and 
decreasing the angle relative to the curb.  The storm water grates were not included in the 
contract for the street, but they were being made in-house at a significantly lower cost.  There 
were reports of groundwater issues on Main Street, as with most of the town periodically.  They 
water had been tested and was not leaking from any of the City lines.  Don Smith noted that it 
had been a wet year and Eddy’s Bakery had groundwater in the basement every year.  City 
Manager Crossett agreed that it was an ongoing issue, particularly after they had had to replace 
saturated clays with fill to complete the Main Street Project and some businesses were struggling 
with the changing flow of the groundwater.   
The golf course restaurant was on track to break even after the end of the season.  He had 
facilitated a work session the previous week with golf course employees, city staff, and 
Commissioner Lies to discuss what had worked, what had not, and what they would need to do 
to improve service and cost efficiency.  They would be re-writing the business plan based upon 
the working session. 
The City Hall renovations from the DEQ energy efficiency grant had started that work.  They 
were using the grant as an opportunity to make the floor plan work better as well.   
He would be meeting with representatives from the library to finalize a draft agreement defining   
terms under which the Library would transition from City funding and ownership to the new 
Library District and that the draft agreement would be brought to the Council for discussion and 
approval. 
 
FIRST READING – ORDINANCE #660 – AUTHORIZE FIRE DEPARTMENT TO BILL 
INSURANCE FOR INCIDENT RESPONSE:  City Attorney Raymond informed the 
Commission that since this ordinance was previously on the agenda, he had made the changes 
they had instructed including making the City policy in agreement with the proposed Rural Fire 
Department’s, and not excluding those who were City tax payers.  Fred Nelson, Chairman of the 
Rural Fire Board, explained that the proposed collection company would take 10% of the 
revenue and would only bill those who carry auto insurance.  He added that the majority of the 
Rural Fire Board were opposed to using a billing company that would not charge those without 
insurance coverage.  He commented that charging those who did pay property taxes the 
additional billing was a slap in the face to those taxpayers who contributed to the fire 
departments and faithfully donated to the them as well.   He questioned why they would penalize 



Polson City Commission Meeting Minutes November 15, 2010 3 
 

those that followed the law and carried insurance, who in turn would increase their insurance 
rates to cover the cost of the additional billing.  Don Smith inquired if funds were short for the 
departments.  Commissioner Campbell noted that the revenue would go towards equipment and 
training.  City Manager Crossett explained that due to the economic downturn, capital 
expenditures had been held off, including the ladder truck which needed upgraded.  This 
ordinance would only be applied to fire department response to auto accidents, which currently 
were not reimbursed in any way.  He pointed out that auto insurance policies include coverage 
for these incidence response charges.  He felt that they could easily look into other companies 
that would suit them better.  He noted that the Fire Chief, the City Commission, and he felt that it 
was important for the City’s incident response to be in agreement with the Rural departments.  
Fred Nelson noted that Ronan was already billing for incident response with the proposed 
collection company, but he questioned the fairness of their policy.  He questioned why they don’t 
charge for false alarms.  He noted that if they found a collection provider that billed even those 
without insurance the Rural Board may approve.  Commissioner Duford commented that with 
these extra charges an insurance company could drop someone, and felt that it was unfair.  Fred 
Nelson noted that insurance companies could drop a customer for any reason.  Commissioner 
Campbell asked if the Rural Board was considering exempting tax payers.  Fred Nelson 
questioned how that could be done.  He felt that the backlash from an incidence response billing 
policy could have negative effects on either department.  Mayor DeVries noted that more and 
more places were using these policies, and she wondered if they would be paying for it in their 
insurance with no benefit if the City did not begin to charge as well.  She noted that many of the 
vehicle accidents in the area involved people who didn’t live in the area and did not pay any 
local taxes.  She agreed that it was not fair to bill only those with insurance coverage, but she 
wondered if it was the cost difference in having to get the money from those without insurance.  
City Attorney Raymond advised that passing Ordinance 660 would not bind the City to any 
company.  Commissioner Preston inquired if Ronan had experienced any backlash for their 
policy.  City Attorney Raymond advised that he had only heard positive feedback from Ronan.  
Commissioner Campbell expressed concern that those who broke the law by not carrying 
insurance would not be charged.  Murat Kalinyaprak commented that insurance companies’ rates 
are influenced by the local averages.  He was not sure of any other local area that was charging 
for responses, but he questioned the City Attorney, who was also the Ronan City Attorney, 
proposing the policy.  Mayor DeVries corrected that Fire Chief John Fairchild had proposed the 
incidence response ordinance.  Suzanne Luepke noted that they were already being charged the 
insurance companies for that coverage, but rates increase no matter when you are in an accident.  
John Swenson questioned why the revenue would go towards training and equipment and not 
existing costs.  City Manager Crossett advised that training was part of the cost of being able to 
deliver the existing services.  It was crucial for the safety of the volunteers and those they were 
aiding to be properly and adequately trained.  Rory Horning questioned why they were having a 
discussion prior to a motion being made and asked if it was a new style.  He commented that he 
didn’t know if this was a new way of running the meeting because he never knew if policies 
changed.  He suggested the City ratify the Charter.  He commented that he agreed that either 
everyone or no one should be charged, but expressed concern that they were flying blind on the 
cost of the policy and average incident statistics.  He was opposed to contracting with a company 
that would take a percentage of the revenue while simply processing the claims through the mail.  
He felt they could find someone locally.  He commented that just because other cities were doing 
so did not mean that Polson also should.  He felt that charging for services was making the fire 



Polson City Commission Meeting Minutes November 15, 2010 4 
 

department look like an enterprise fund.  He felt that any charges should go to augment the 
general fund and not to a special reserve fund.  He did not feel it was good fiscal management. 
He asked for more answers about the charges before it was approved and pointed out the 
previous fire chief had not pursued such a policy.  Mayor DeVries noted that the Fire Chief 
provided monthly response reports.  City Manager Crossett noted that Chief Fairchild had 
projected revenue at $30,000-$40,000 annually.  Commissioner Preston noted that businesses 
come about because they can specialize in a field and be good at it.  She opined that they may 
end up paying less by using a good contractor for the collections.  She added that she liked the 
idea of putting the revenue in the general fund.  City Manager Crossett noted that the fire 
department operating budget was within the general fund.  Karen Sargeant advised that any 
equipment used in a response, which various items were used depending on spillage or 
wreckage, had to be replaced at the fire department’s cost.  They had missed out on excellent 
ladder truck replacements, at a greatly reduced price from purchasing a new one, because they 
did not have enough reserved to make the purchase.  She also advised of the cost to send 
volunteers to the fire academy, which was over $1,000 per person, which many volunteers 
attended at their own cost.  Commissioner Preston moved to approve the first reading of 
Ordinance 660 to authorize the fire department to bill insurance for incident responses, 
seconded by Commissioner Smith.  Cheryl Wolfe commented that she did not like the idea of 
automatically awarding a contract, and felt a business could be found locally.  She commented 
that even if this was money the fire department did not currently collect, there was no such thing 
as free money and the cost would be passed on to insurance rates.  She urged them to consider 
charging only those at fault and non-residence.  The motion died for lack of a majority with 
Commissioners Smith, Preston, and Mayor DeVries in favor, Commissioners Campbell, 
Lies, and Duford opposed.  Commissioner Lies and Campbell both expressed concern that the 
charges would be double taxation for residence.  Commissioner Preston expressed concern that 
non-residence would not be paying for the service at all.  Mayor DeVries advised that she would 
like to see the policy come back if the Rural Fire Board approves some form of it.   
 
AUTHORIZE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE RECOVERY USA FIRE INCIDENT 
COST RECOVERY CONTRACT:  The item died for lack of a motion. 
 
NEW EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN DRAFT:  Steve Stanley the Lake County Office 
of Emergency Management Manager presented the updated emergency operations plan.  There 
would be a meeting December 1st, 2010 at 1:00 p.m. at the Polson Fairgrounds Rural Fire 
Station.  The big changes in the plan were for compliance with federal regulations.  Lake 
County, CSKT, and Sanders County had all worked to build the plan together.  He noted that 
they look through the plan every year, but major updates are done every 10 years.  Mayor 
DeVries expressed that she was impressed upon reading through the document.  The plan would 
be available at Polson City Hall or on the website.   
 
RECYCLING UPDATE:  Parks Superintendent Sargeant informed the Commissioners that 
since the receipt of the recycling grant there had been great success in all of the Polson schools 
and at City Hall.  They had not anticipated the amount of recycled material and the good natured 
competition it had spurred in the schools.  She was working on tweaking the recycling plan to 
make it more efficient, though the overwhelming success of the program was taking more staff 
time than they had anticipated.  There was a large demand for facilities for locals to be able to 



Polson City Commission Meeting Minutes November 15, 2010 5 
 

drop off their recyclables as well.  At the current time they could take their separated recyclables 
to the transfer station.  The County Commissioners were working with herself and the water and 
sewer department to find a location that was not on private property, perhaps near the 7th Avenue 
Sports Complex.  Since June the schools and employees of the City of Polson had recycled 
10,675 pounds of cardboard, 335 pounds of aluminum, 1,742 pounds of plastics 1 and 2, and 
1,767 pounds of newspaper and magazines.   Mayor DeVries inquired about how the program 
had run in the parks.  Parks Superintendent Sargeant replied that they had bins for plastics and 
aluminum next to the garbage cans.  There was some throwing in the wrong bins, but they had 
been mostly successful.  They had removed the bins for the winter, but they would be back in the 
spring.  Commissioner Campbell inquired if the parks department received revenue from the 
recycled material.  Parks Superintendent Sargeant advised that money from the recycling 
program materials was received by Lake County and would go towards the public recycling 
program.  However, the streets and parks department had a scrap metal bin from which they split 
the revenue.  She encouraged the use of recycled products, which fed the need for materials to be 
recycled and allowed for return on waste that was recycled.  The schools would be taking over 
their individual programs once they were solidly in place.  Murat Kalinyaprak commended the 
program and encouraged educational resources to teach people about creating a sustainable 
ecosystem.  Susanne Luepke expressed appreciation to the parks department for the recycling 
program.  John Swenson agreed that the program was a good thing but expressed concern that it 
could become monitored and mandatory.  Karen Sargeant opined that it would be nice to get 
Allied Waste on board for the public recycling.  The entire state had a goal to increase recycled 
goods 20% by 2014.  Commissioner Campbell noted that the Museum took aluminum cans at 
their Main Street location and used it as a major revenue source.  Commissioner Preston noted 
that the transfer station would be getting a can sorter, and may start taking mixed paper products.  
Suzanne Luepke expressed the importance of purchasing products made out of recycled material.  
 
GOLF PASS DONATION TO SOROPTIMIST INTERNATIONAL:  Golf Board President 
Dave Sheesley advised the Commission that the Golf Board had approved the donation of two 
golf passes to the Soroptimists International as they fit the non-profit organization criteria set up 
for such donations.  Commissioner Campbell moved to approve the donation of two golf 
passes to Soroptimist International, seconded by Commissioner Lies.  The motion carried 
unanimously.    
 
FY 2010-2011 SEASON GOLF PASS PRICES:  Golf Board President Sheesley advised that 
the Golf Board have voted not to raise the season price passes.  The fee for private golf carts they 
approved raising $17 due to the impact of the carts on the course.  Commissioner Lies moved to 
approve the FY 2010-2011 season golf passes as presented, seconded by Commissioner 
Preston.  Commissioner Campbell had received a couple concerned phone calls, asking them to 
keep in mind people were not making any more this year than the previous.  Commissioner 
Duford commented that she was puzzled by the definition of the term “couples”.  City Attorney 
Raymond clarified that the term was the definition of marriage according to the State of Montana 
which included common law.  Murat Kalinyaprak commented that he opposed the couples pass 
as it was discriminatory and did not benefit the City or the golf course.  He felt it was unfair to 
single parents and same sex couples.  He went over the claim he had filed against the City, and 
despite losing the appeal, he felt that it was not right.  He felt there should be a more 
comprehensive or family pass, and suggested restricted or twilight passes at a reduced cost.  He 



Polson City Commission Meeting Minutes November 15, 2010 6 
 

suggested using the old 9 for a different purpose as a separate venue.  He suggested that they 
keep that course separate for one year and see if things were different under different 
management.  He encouraged the reestablishing of the PGA and having them run the old 9, and 
thought they may see a benefit to the City.  He commented that did not believe the course was 
managed properly.  Commissioner Smith inquired if there were many people who agreed with 
Mr. Kalinyaprak’s stance.  Denise Petersen commented that she agreed, and as a single mother 
she would appreciate having a cheaper pass even though she was not in a couple.  She also 
encouraged Mr. Kalinyaprak stating his opinion.  Commissioner Smith thought there was a daily 
twilight pass.  Murat Kalinyaprak commented that there was no annual twilight pass.  He pointed 
out that other courses have such a pass.  He felt it benefit the membership.  He commented that 
the number of passes held had reduced significantly and had become a privileged, elite little 
group despite the town increases greatly in population.  Commissioner Duford commented that 
the golf course was built to benefit the City for recreational purposes, but it didn’t work if people 
that live in the area couldn’t afford to play.  She was in favor of no longer having a couple’s 
pass.  Golf Board President Sheesley noted that the Board had discussed it, and was in agreement 
with the court ruling that it did not discourage use of the course.  Commissioner Preston noted 
that she disagreed with the definition of couples, however she understood using the state 
definition for the policy.  Commissioner Duford expressed that she did not agree with putting 
solemnized couples that had performed a marriage ceremony being regarded as couples the same 
as a common law marriage.  Denise Petersen commented that both types of marriages were 
considered the same in state law.  She was in favor of discounted passes, but felt they should be 
spread around to more than just couples.  Mayor DeVries noted that the cost of a single pass was 
$443 and a couple’s pass was $836.  Commissioner Smith opined that it encouraged couples to 
purchase the pass, even when one of the couple may not be an avid golfer.  Commissioner 
Preston inquired if there was increased revenue due to the pass.  Golf Board President Sheesley 
advised that it was a minimal difference one way or the other, but that it was a standard practice 
at golf courses.  Mayor DeVries commended the junior golfers’ prices, she felt that they were 
very reasonable.  Commissioner Smith agreed noting that the schools had done a great job of 
getting the youth involved.  The motion carried with 5 in favor, Commissioner Duford 
opposed.   
 
CITY OF PLSON PROLOMATION – EXTRA MILE DAY NOVEMBER 1ST, 2010:  
Mayor DeVries proclaimed November 1st as Extra Mile Day for the City of Polson.  Rory 
Horning commented that according to the Charter making proclamations was not one of the 
Mayoral duties.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS OF SIGNIFICANT INTEREST TO THE PUBLIC 
NOT ON THE AGENDA:  Murat Kalinyaprak suggested that the City Manager comments 
include a list of old business that had not been addressed.  He commented that he would like to 
see outstanding questions on the list to be addressed at every meeting until they were, like Mr. 
Horning’s questions about the ratification of the Charter, Roger Noble answering questions on 
the proposed well site that was not used, the Tamsco building lease agreement, and an ethics 
committee.  He commented that he would like to see addressed whether or not the city manager 
form of government had been a benefit to the City.  He commented that he would like to know 
how cost efficient or wastefully tax dollars were being spent in comparison to the national 
averages.  He added that he would like this list of running questions added to the regular agenda.  



Polson City Commission Meeting Minutes November 15, 2010 7 
 

Rory Horning commented that he had asked for the date the Charter had been ratified but he’d 
been given the date it was voted for.  He commented that the people had decided to try the city 
manager form of government.  And then they had the City Attorney write the Charter and he had 
written his own job into the document.  He commented that they had been running on that 
Charter and it was not ratified by the people elected to the Commission to look over and decide if 
that was the document was what they wanted to govern the people with.  He added that they 
could off people like himself, but one day, someone just like the City Attorney but a smarter 
attorney, and he would come along and say that everything they had done under that Charter did 
not have to be followed because the document wasn’t ratified.  He said they were going to 
address the Charter so that there were no questions about it, and he as a taxpayer could go to the 
document and find out what was going on, or they would do things the hard way.  He 
commented that it was not fair anymore, the last group had done what it wanted, and they had 
done things they way they wanted it, and they extended things they wanted to, but that was not 
how they do things in America.  He asked the Commissioner all to read the document and find 
out why this group has not ratified the document on behalf of their constituents.   
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:07 p.m. 
 

_____________________________________ 
Mayor Pat DeVries     

 
____________________________________ 
Attest:  Kala Parker, City Clerk 


